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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintift,

V. No. 3:CV 05-0215
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MISTY STAFFORD, individually and d/b/a
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to Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), charged
Defendants, Misty Stafford and William R. Stafford (“Defendants” or
“Staffords™), with deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45. Although Defendants initially responded to the suit,

including filing an answer, they later failed to cooperate with the litigation,
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In light of Defendants’ default and after considering the pleadings,
declarations, exhibits, other evidence, and the arguments of counsel, judgment is
entered in favor of Plaintiff, Federal Trade Commission, upon the terms set forth

below.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I. The Commission brought this action under Sections 5(a) and 13(b) of

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b). The Commission’s Complaint secks
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2. Defendants owned and operated National Home Assemblers

(“NHA”), located in Bradford County, Pennsylvania. Beginning in 2002,
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represented that they had “simple work” for “top pay.”
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consumer injury was at least four million four hundred forty-nine thousand two
hundred twenty-nine dollars ($4,449,229).

6.  Through their attorney, Defendants waived personal service of the
Summons and Complaint.

7. Defendants had actual knowledge of this action. Defendants
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10, 2005, in connection with the preliminary injunction hearing scheduled by the
Court. On February 10, 2005, Defendants signed the STIPULATED

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION WITH ASSET FREEZE, ACCOUNTING AND
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PERMANENT INJUNCTION, REDRESS, AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
and related pleadings on or about June 28, 2005.
12.  The factual allegations in the Commission’s Complaint are taken as

true against Defendants. Those allegations and the evidence supporting them
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13.  Defendants are likely to continue to engage in the acts and practices
alleged in the Complaint unless they are permanently enjoined from such acts or

practices.
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in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final
Judgment by personal service or otherwise.

18.  This action is the “commencement or continuation of an action or
proceeding by a governmental unit to enforce such governmental unit’s police or

regulatory power,” as set forth in 11 U.S.C. § 362(b)(4). Any bankruptcy petition,
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19.  Any bankruptcy petition, voluntary or involuntary, does not divest

this Court of jurisdiction to enter this Judgment.

L.
DEFINITIONS
For purposes of this Final Judgment, the following definitions shall apply:
A.  “Defendants” means Misty Stafford and William R. Stafford, and
each of them, separately and individually.

B.  “Person” means an individual, sole proprietorship, partnership,



C.  “And” and “or” shall be construed both conjunctively or disjunctively
to make the applicable sentence or phrase inclusive rather than
exclusive.

1L
PROHIBITED MISREPRESENTATIONS

IT IS ORDERED THAT, in connection with soliciting persons for any

employment or business opportunity or relationship, Defendants, whether acting

directly or through any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited
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B.  Misrepresenting that the work required by the employment or
business opportunity or relationship is simple and requires no special

skills.

II1.

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES OF DEFENDANT
WILLIAM R. STAFFORD

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant William R. Stafford is

D nently restrained and enioined from engaging or narticinating in_ or ascisting
—

others who are engaging or participating in, with or without compensation or
remuneration of any kind, any solicitation of, or contracting with, persons for any
at-home employment or business opportunity. This prohibition includes, but is not
limited to, (i) initiating or receiving such solicitations or entering into such
contracts; (1i) operating or managing any person who initiates or receives such
solicitations or enters into such contracts; (iii) owning or serving as an officer or
director of a person that initiates or receives such solicitations; or (iv) otherwise

working as an employee or independent contractor with, or serving as a consultant
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opportunity” means a relationship in which an individual produces goods or

provides services from his or her residence for any other person.

IV.
PROHIBITION ON TRANSFERRING BUSINESS INFORMATION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, whether acting directly or
through any corporation, parmership, sole proprietorship, limited liability

company, subsidiary, division, or other device, and their successors, assigns,
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participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment, by
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in connection with their activities doing business as National Home Assemblers;

(2) to an accountant for purposes of preparing and filing required tax retums for

calendar years 2004 and 2005; (3) to the FTC for purposes of administering the

redress pro

cribed in Section Vbelow: and (D toal nforcerent

agency or as required by law, regulation, or court order.

V.
MONETARY RELIEF AND CONSUMER REDRESS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that judgment is hereby entered
against Defendants, Misty Stafford and William R. Stafford, jointly
and severally, in favor of the FTC, for equitable monetary relief in the
amount of four million four hundred forty-nine thousand two hundred
twenty-nine dollars ($4,449,229), the mimimum consumer injury in
this matter.
In partial satisfaction of this judgment,
1. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the Receiver
appointed in the STIPULATED PRELIMINARY
INJUNCTION WITH ASSET FREEZE, ACCOUNTING AND

APPOINTMENT OF PERMANENT RECEIVER, as amended,
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(Stipulated Preliminary Injunction) entered February 14, 2005,

shall take possession of all property of Defendants.
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deliver that account or that property to the Receiver appointed

in the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction. Any bank, financial
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forty-nine thousand two hundred twenty-nine dollars
($4,449,229) monetary relief, plus interest and allowable costs,
fees, and other litigation expenses (“Sum Awarded Plaintiff™),
plus the costs of liquidating and administering the Receivership
Defendant (including the Receiver’s fees and expenses allowed
by the Court). This provision, however, shall not be
interpreted to prevent the Receiver from liquidating all
property of the Receivership Defendant.

Within ten (10) days after the innidatinn jn snhseetion 3 ahnve

Defendant, the Receiver shall transfer to the Commission
sufficient funds to pay the Sum Awarded Plaintiff;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the property of the
Receivership Defendant is insufficient to pay all of the Sum

Awarded Plaintiff, the Receiver shall deliver to the
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5. Any property of the Receivership Defendant remaining after
payment of the Sum Awarded Plaintiff and the costs of the
Receivership Defendant shall be delivered to Defendants’
attorney for delivery to Defendants.

6. Nothing in this Final Judgment shall preclude the Commission
from collecting any deficiency of the Receivership Defendant
through any lawful means.

7. The facts as alleged in the complaint filed in this action shall be
taken as true, without further proof, in any subsequent

litigation filed by the Commission to collect any unpaid
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including a nondischargeability action filed by or on behalf of
the Commission in any bankruptcy case.

C.  All funds paid pursuant to this Order shall be deposited into a fund
administered by the Commission or, in the Commission’s sole
discretion, by its agent, to be used for equitable relief, including but
not limited to consumer redress, and any attendant expenses for the
administration of such equitable relief. In the event that direct redress

to consumers is wholly or partially impracticable or funds remain

Page 14 of 25



[ PR o S

Case 3:05-cv-00215-TIV  Document 70  Filed 09/14/2005 Page 15 of 25

after redress is completed, the Commission may apply any remaining
funds for such other equitable relief (including consumer information
remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to defendants’

practices alleged in the Complaint. Any funds not used for such
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Commuission’s choice of remedies under this Part, and shall have no
right to contest the manner of distribution chosen by the Commission,

! Ll =

4 v

Jﬂlﬁn ;nwr"‘. | FSROUURC SR U | I

deemed a payment of any fine, penalty, or punitive assessment.



RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of ten (10) years from the
date of entry of this Final Judgment, Defendants and their agents, employees,
corporations, successors, and assigns, and those persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by

personal service or otherwise, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to
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they are an otficer, director, or general partner:
A.  Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or services sold,

revenues generated, and the disbursement of such revenues;



description of items or services purchased, to the extent such

information is obtained in the ordinary course of business;
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requests,

E.  Copies of all sales scripts, training materials, advertisements, or other
marketing materials; and,

F.  All records and documents necessary to demonstrate full compliance
with each provision of this Final Judgment, including but not limited
to, copies of acknowledgments of receipt of this Final Judgment,

required by Section X of this Final Judgment, and all reports
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1. Defendants, individually and separately, shall notify the
Commission of the following:
a. Any changes in his or her residence, mailing address(es),
or telephone number(s), within ten (10) days of the date

of such change;

Anv cha in his or her employment ,s@as__{igcluding
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ownership of any business entity, within ten (10) days of
such change. The notice shall include the name and
address of each business that the Defendant is affiliated

with, are employed by, creates, forms, or performs

services for; a statement of the nature of the business;
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responsibilities in connection with the business or
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directly or indirectly controls, or has an ownership interest in,
that may affect compliance obligations arising under this
Order, including but not limited to dissolution, assignment,
sale, merger, or other action that would result in the emergence
of a successor entity; the creation or dissolution of a
subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or

practices subject to this Order; the filing of a bankruptcy
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thirty (30) days before such change, PROVIDED,

HOWEVER, that with respect to any proposed change in a

business gbout which Defendantg Jearp less than thirtv (30)

days before the date such action is to take place, Defendants

shall notify the Commission as soon as is practicable after
obtaining such knowledge.
B.  One hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of this Final Judgment as
entered by the Court, Defendants shall provide a written report to the

FTC, sworn to under penalty of perjury, setting forth in detail the
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Director, East Central Region
Federal Trade Commission
Eaton Center, Suite 200

1111 Superior Avenue
Cleveland, OH 44114

Re: FTC v. Stafford, No. 3:CV 05-0215 (M.D. Pa)
D.  For purposes of the compliance reporting and monitoring required by
this Final Judgment, the Commission is authorized to communicate

directly with Defendants unless Defendants provide the FTC, in
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through whom the FTC may communicate.

IX.
COMPLIANCE MONITORING
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for purposes of monitoring and
investigating compliance with this Final Judgment,
A.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of a written notice from a
representative of the Commission, Defendants shall submit additional

written reports sworn to under penalty of perjury; produce documents
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of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-1, to obtain any documentary material,
tangible things, testimony, or information relevant to unfair or deceptive acts or

practices in or affecting commerce within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(1).

X.
DISTRIBUTION OF JUDGMENT BY DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for seven (7) years from the date of

entry of this Judgment as directed below:

A.  Defendants as Control Persons: For any business that Defendants
control, together or individually, directly or indirectly, or in which
they have a majority ownership interest, together or individually,
Defendants must deliver a copy of this Final Judgment to all
principals, officers, directors, and managers of that business.
Defendants must also deliver copies of this Final Judgment to all
employees, agents, and representatives of that business who engage in
conduct related to the subject matter of this Final Judgment. For
current personnel, delivery shall be within five (5) days of service of
this Final Judgment upon Defendants. For new personnel, delivery

shall occur before they assume their responsibilities.
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B.  Defendants as employees or non-control persons: For any business in
which Defendants, together or jointly, are not controlling persons but
otherwise engage in conduct related to the subject matter of this
Judgment, Defendants must deliver a copy of this Final Judgment to
all principals and managers of such business before engaging in such
conduct.

C.  Defendants must secure a signed and dated statement acknowledging
receipt of the Final Judgment, within thirty (30) days of delivery,
from all persons receiving a copy of the Final Judgment pursuant to

this Section.

XL
INDEPENDENCE OF OBLIGATIONS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the expiration of any requirement
imposed by this Final Judgment shall not affect any other requirement created by

this Final Judgment.
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XIL
RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of
this matter for all purposes, including construction, modification, and

enforcement.

L A .
ENTERED this / L/'j" day of \SFPJFM\/»& , 2005.

T Ve, Ao

THOMAS 1. VANASKIE, Chief Judge
United States District Court
Middle District of Pennsylvania
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